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Council Member Natasha Harper-Madison, District 1 
Council Member Sabino "Pio" Renteria, District 3  

Council Member Gregorio Casar, District 4  
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Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, District 6 
Council Member Leslie Pool, District 7  
Council Member Paige Ellis, District 8 

Council Member Kathie Tovo, District 9 
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The City Council Questions and Answers Report was derived from a need to provide City Council 
Members an opportunity to solicit clarifying information from City Departments as it relates to requests 
for council action. After a City Council Regular Meeting agenda has been published, Council Members 
will have the opportunity to ask questions of departments via the City Manager’s Agenda Office. This 
process continues until 5:00 p.m. the Tuesday before the Council meeting. The final report is distributed at 
noon to City Council the Wednesday before the council meeting. 

 
QUESTIONS FROM COUNCIL 

Item #12: Approve a resolution finding the use of the design-build method of contracting, as 
authorized by Subchapter G, Chapter 2269 of the Texas Government Code, is the project delivery 
method that provides the best value to the City for the rebuilding of the Brackenridge GIS Substation. 
(Note: MBE/WBE goals will be established prior to issuance of this solicitation.) 

COUNCIL MEMBER TOVO’S OFFICE 
Where is this substation located? 

The address for the existing (and eventually rebuilt) Brackenridge Substation is 1300 ½ N 
I35 Service Rd Southbound.  It is located just north of the Texas Municipal Retirement 
System building, which is bordered by E12th and the frontage road (and Sabine to the 
west). The Sobering Center lies just to the west of the substation. 
 

 
 

 

Item #20: Approve a resolution updating the City of Austin's Public Improvement District Policy. 

MAYOR ADLER’S OFFICE 
Why should Council not be able to do a bond PID in the City’s ETJ? 

Although State Statute allows a city or county to create a PID within a city’s corporate limits or 
its extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”), City staff’s recommendation in the proposed PID Policy is 
that any future PID created by the City be located within its full purpose jurisdiction (“FPJ”).  
Proposed PIDs in the City’s ETJ would be directed to annex the property to the City’s FPJ prior to 
creation.   

Creation of a PID in the ETJ would be recommended by staff only on an exception basis where a 
waiver of the adopted PID policy would also be recommended; this would not be a standard 
option.  The City’s creation of a PID in its ETJ (which is not included in the City’s tax base, zoning 



jurisdiction, and where the City has limited control over such future development) would have 
to confer extraordinary special benefits that advance the City’s Comprehensive Plan and SD2023 
strategic outcomes.  While in the past, annexation gave the City the authority to address many 
of these concerns, recent changes at the legislature have limited the City’s annexation ability.   

Why should we limit the ability to have a property be in more than one PID? 

The DRAFT PID Policy allows Development PIDs and M&O PIDs to overlap in the same 
geographic boundaries.  

The DRAFT PID Policy recommends not allowing overlapping M&O PIDs as a means to address 
on-going affordability challenges, to align with PID best practices, to ensure property owners in 
a geographic area contribute to a shared vision and avoid a duplication of improvements that 
could be satisfied by one PID entity and one assessment.  

If City Council chooses to allow overlapping M&O PIDs within the PID Policy, the following 
controls are recommended by staff. 

1. A new M&O PID proposed within the boundaries of an existing M&O PID would 
require signatures from 80 percent of property owners in the overlapping geographic 
area.  

2. All overlapping M&O PIDs must demonstrate no duplication of improvements in 
annual service plans. 

If property is in more than one PID what would be the priority of lien? 

An assessment, including interest, is a first and prior lien against the assessed property superior to all 
other liens except for ad valorem taxes.  Any special assessments levied on the property would be 
paid on a pro-rata basis.  If two PIDs assess one property there would be two liens on this property.  

Why not permit City Council the ability to dissolve PIDs (at the five year contract renewal or 
reauthorization period)?  

The DRAFT PID policy recommends following the state statute for dissolution, which would 
require a petition and involvement and cooperation of 50% property owners. City Council can 
establish an expiration date of a PID at the time of creation through ordinance. City Council also 
annually takes action on setting the assessment rate for an M&O PID. City Council may take 
action to set the assessment rate to zero, which would not legally dissolve the PID but would 
stop PID assessment revenue collections.  

Would this policy help or hinder any group that is currently working on forming an M&O PID?    

The DRAFT PID Policy is based on national best practices and provides recommendations and a 
framework to ensure transparency, disclosure, compliance with state laws, and equity. The DRAFT PID 
Policy as written would not hinder any group from forming an M&O PIDs. 

 



Item #28: Authorize negotiation and execution of an interlocal agreement with Travis County to 
provide connectivity to the Austin Police Department’s Gemalto Cogent Live Scan Automated Biometric 
Identification System. 

COUNCIL MEMBER FLANNIGAN’S OFFICE 
Noting that the City is doing this with Travis and Hays County, has there been an exploration of a need 
to execute this same ILA with Williamson County? 

Yes, we extended a draft ILA for this same CABIS connectivity to the Williamson County Sheriff’s 
Office for review and consideration, however they did not wish to participate. 

 
 
Item #46: Authorize award of a contract with Techline Inc., to provide steel utility poles, for a total 
contract amount not to exceed $400,000. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER HARPER-MADISON’S OFFICE 

Whether increases in the cost of steel had a direct impact on the cost of the light poles? 
Yes.  The price of steel is the main driver of the contractor’s costs for the poles.  This contract 
recognizes the US Department of Labor’s Producer Price Index (PPI) as an index to manage price 
increases.  In the past two years, the cost of carbon steel, which is the main component of the poles, 
has increased by approximately 44% according to the PPI. 

 

Item #55: Authorize negotiation and execution of Work Authorization No. 3 under a service contract 
with CBRE Inc., for facility space programming and analysis, financial analysis and real estate brokerage 
services related to the City's Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy plan, and other facility planning 
efforts, for an increase in the amount of $650,000, for a revised total contract amount not to exceed 
$1,938,000.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER TOVO’S OFFICE 
What are the deliverables associated with this contract? 
 This work authorization is planned to have four separate tasks: 
 

Task 1: Working off the recommendations of the recently completed Strategic Administrative Office 
Occupancy Plan, this effort will focus on office space programming, space standards, and adjacency 
analysis and Request for Proposal due diligence for a new Administrative Office building, so that the 
City can continue on the strategy of exiting office lease space.  
Deliverables: Program of Requirements report, Draft Request for Proposal document 
 
Task 2: The Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy Plan confirmed that the current Austin Police 
Headquarters building is functionally obsolete and that a replacement should be identified. This task 
will focus on updating Police space programming needs, including identifying best practices and 
requirements for Police headquarters space, and Request for Proposal due diligence for a 
replacement HQ facility.  
Deliverables: Program of Requirements report, Draft Request for Proposal document 
 
Task 3: The Rutherford Lane Administrative Campus currently houses approximately 695 employees. 
The Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy Plan recommended that the City keep this building as 
long-term hold, but to look at a long term investment and site specific occupancy plan. In addition, 
on September 19th, 2019, Council passed a resolution directing the City Manager to look at 



integrating a redevelopment plan for the Rutherford Lane Campus with the adjoining Asian American 
Resource Center’s (AARC) Master Plan. This task will look at potential redevelopment plans, including 
city office space needs, non-city office space demand, parking and other site assessments, in 
conjunction with Parks and Recreation’s AARC Master Plan. 
Deliverable: Rutherford Lane Redevelopment Report: Opportunities and Strategies 
 
Task 4: The City has numerous warehousing and service yards that are needed to provide public 
services. As was done with Administrative Office space, it is necessary to begin developing a plan to 
address current demands and future needs for warehousing and service yards, in rigorous, planned 
out manner.  
Deliverable: Initial Assessment of City of Warehousing and Service Yard Assets and Requirements 

 
 
Item #56: Authorize negotiation and execution of a contract with P3 Works, LLC, to provide public 
improvement district administration services, for up to five years for a total contract amount not to 
exceed $1,500,000.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER TOVO’S OFFICE 
Are these City of Austin costs reimbursed by the PIDs?  

Yes, the cost of the Administrator along with any other administrative costs are billed to each 
City PID and recovered through assessments. 

 
 
Item #109: C14-2019-0131 - Covert Ford - Conduct a public hearing and approve an ordinance 
amending City Code Title 25 by rezoning property locally known as 11514 Research Boulevard South 
Bound Service Road (Bull Creek Watershed). Applicant Request: To rezone from limited office (LO) 
district zoning to community commercial-conditional overlay (GR-CO) combining district zoning. Staff 
Recommendation: To deny community commercial-conditional overlay combining (GR-CO) district 
zoning. Zoning and Platting Commission Recommendation: To grant community commercial-conditional 
overlay (GR-CO) combining district zoning. Applicant/Owner: D.R. Brothers Management, LLC (Rox B. 
Covert, Duke M. Covert, and Danay C. Covert). Agent: Alice Glasco Consulting (Alice Glasco). City Staff: 
Sherri Sirwaitis, 512-974-3057.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER HARPER-MADISON’S OFFICE 
I was also wondering if we could get a copy of the US 183 study approved in 1978 that is referenced in 
the staff report for item 109? 
 See attachment.  



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #12 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Approve a resolution finding the use of the design-build method of contracting, as authorized by Subchapter G, Chapter 
2269 of the Texas Government Code, is the project delivery method that provides the best value to the City for the 
rebuilding of the Brackenridge GIS Substation.  
 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Tovo’s Office 
 
Where is this substation located? 
 

The address for the existing (and eventually rebuilt) Brackenridge Substation is 1300 ½ N I35 Service Rd 
Southbound.  It is located just north of the Texas Municipal Retirement System building, which is bordered by 
E12th and the frontage road (and Sabine to the west). The Sobering Center lies just to the west of the substation. 

 

 

 



 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #20 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Approve a resolution updating the City of Austin's Public Improvement District Policy. 
 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Mayor Adler’s Office 
 
Why should Council not be able to do a bond PID in the City’s ETJ? 

Although State Statute allows a city or county to create a PID within a city’s corporate limits or its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (“ETJ”), City staff’s recommendation in the proposed PID Policy is that any future PID created by the 
City be located within its full purpose jurisdiction (“FPJ”).  Proposed PIDs in the City’s ETJ would be directed to 
annex the property to the City’s FPJ prior to creation.   
 
Creation of a PID in the ETJ would be recommended by staff only on an exception basis where a waiver of the 
adopted PID policy would also be recommended; this would not be a standard option.  The City’s creation of a 
PID in its ETJ (which is not included in the City’s tax base, zoning jurisdiction, and where the City has limited 
control over such future development) would have to confer extraordinary special benefits that advance the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and SD2023 strategic outcomes.  While in the past, annexation gave the City the 
authority to address many of these concerns, recent changes at the legislature have limited the City’s annexation 
ability.   

 
Why should we limit the ability to have a property be in more than one PID? 

The DRAFT PID Policy allows Development PIDs and M&O PIDs to overlap in the same geographic boundaries.  
 
The DRAFT PID Policy recommends not allowing overlapping M&O PIDs as a means to address on-going 
affordability challenges, to align with PID best practices, to ensure property owners in a geographic area 
contribute to a shared vision and avoid a duplication of improvements that could be satisfied by one PID entity 
and one assessment.  
If City Council chooses to allow overlapping M&O PIDs within the PID Policy, the following controls are 
recommended by staff. 
 

1. A new M&O PID proposed within the boundaries of an existing M&O PID would require signatures 
from 80 percent of property owners in the overlapping geographic area.  
 
2. All overlapping M&O PIDs must demonstrate no duplication of improvements in annual service plans. 

 
If property is in more than one PID what would be the priority of lien? 

An assessment, including interest, is a first and prior lien against the assessed property superior to all other liens 
except for ad valorem taxes.  Any special assessments levied on the property would be paid on a pro-rata basis.  
If two PIDs assess one property there would be two liens on this property.  

 



 

 
Why not permit City Council the ability to dissolve PIDs (at the five year contract renewal or reauthorization period)?  

The DRAFT PID policy recommends following the state statute for dissolution, which would require a petition and 
involvement and cooperation of 50% property owners. City Council can establish an expiration date of a PID at 
the time of creation through ordinance. City Council also annually takes action on setting the assessment rate for 
an M&O PID. City Council may take action to set the assessment rate to zero, which would not legally dissolve 
the PID but would stop PID assessment revenue collections.  
 

Would this policy help or hinder any group that is currently working on forming an M&O PID?    
The DRAFT PID Policy is based on national best practices and provides recommendations and a framework to 
ensure transparency, disclosure, compliance with state laws, and equity. The DRAFT PID Policy as written would 
not hinder any group from forming an M&O PIDs. 

 



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #28 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Authorize negotiation and execution of an interlocal agreement with Travis County to provide connectivity to the Austin 
Police Department's Gemalto Cogent Live Scan Automated Biometric Identification System. 
 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Flannigan’s Office 
 
Noting that the City is doing this with Travis and Hays County, has there been an exploration of a need to execute this 
same ILA with Williamson County? 

 
Yes, we extended a draft ILA for this same CABIS connectivity to the Williamson County Sheriff’s Office for review 
and consideration, however they did not wish to participate. 

 



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #46 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Authorize award of a contract with Techline Inc., to provide steel utility poles, for a total contract amount not to exceed 
$400,000. 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Harper-Madison’s Office 
 
Whether increases in the cost of steel had a direct impact on the cost of the light poles. 

 
Yes.  The price of steel is the main driver of the contractor’s costs for the poles.  This contract recognizes the US 
Department of Labor’s Producer Price Index (PPI) as an index to manage price increases.  In the past two years, 
the cost of carbon steel, which is the main component of the poles, has increased by approximately 44% 
according to the PPI. 

 
 

 



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #55 Meeting Date  December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Authorize negotiation and execution of Work Authorization No. 3 under a service contract with CBRE Inc., for facility 
space programming and analysis, financial analysis and real estate brokerage services related to the City's Strategic 
Administrative Office Occupancy plan, and other facility planning efforts, for an increase in the amount of $650,000, for a 
revised total contract amount not to exceed $1,938,000. 
 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Tovo’s Office 
 
What are the deliverables associated with this contract? 

This work authorization is planned to have four separate tasks: 
 
Task 1: Working off the recommendations of the recently completed Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy 
Plan, this effort will focus on office space programming, space standards, and adjacency analysis and Request for 
Proposal due diligence for a new Administrative Office building, so that the City can continue on the strategy of 
exiting office lease space.  
Deliverables: Program of Requirements report, Draft Request for Proposal document 
 
Task 2: The Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy Plan confirmed that the current Austin Police 
Headquarters building is functionally obsolete and that a replacement should be identified. This task will focus on 
updating Police space programming needs, including identifying best practices and requirements for Police 
headquarters space, and Request for Proposal due diligence for a replacement HQ facility.  
Deliverables: Program of Requirements report, Draft Request for Proposal document 
 
Task 3: The Rutherford Lane Administrative Campus currently houses approximately 695 employees. The 
Strategic Administrative Office Occupancy Plan recommended that the City keep this building as long-term hold, 
but to look at a long term investment and site specific occupancy plan. In addition, on September 19th, 2019, 
Council passed a resolution directing the City Manager to look at integrating a redevelopment plan for the 
Rutherford Lane Campus with the adjoining Asian American Resource Center’s (AARC) Master Plan. This task will 
look at potential redevelopment plans, including city office space needs, non-city office space demand, parking 
and other site assessments, in conjunction with Parks and Recreation’s AARC Master Plan. 
Deliverable: Rutherford Lane Redevelopment Report: Opportunities and Strategies 
 
Task 4: The City has numerous warehousing and service yards that are needed to provide public services. As was 
done with Administrative Office space, it is necessary to begin developing a plan to address current demands and 
future needs for warehousing and service yards, in rigorous, planned out manner.  
Deliverable: Initial Assessment of City of Warehousing and Service Yard Assets and Requirements 

 



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #56 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
Authorize negotiation and execution of a contract with P3 Works, LLC, to provide public improvement district 
administration services, for up to five years for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,500,000.  
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Tovo’s Office 
 
Are these City of Austin costs reimbursed by the PIDs?  

Yes, the cost of the Administrator along with any other administrative costs are billed to each City PID and 
recovered through assessments. 

 



 

 Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item #109 Meeting Date December 5, 2019 

Additional Answer Information 
 
C14-2019-0131 - Covert Ford - Conduct a public hearing and approve an ordinance amending City Code Title 25 by 
rezoning property locally known as 11514 Research Boulevard South Bound Service Road (Bull Creek Watershed). 
Applicant Request: To rezone from limited office (LO) district zoning to community commercial-conditional overlay (GR-
CO) combining district zoning. Staff Recommendation: To deny community commercial-conditional overlay combining 
(GR-CO) district zoning. Zoning and Platting Commission Recommendation: To grant community commercial-conditional 
overlay (GR-CO) combining district zoning. Applicant/Owner: D.R. Brothers Management, LLC (Rox B. Covert, Duke M. 
Covert, and Danay C. Covert). Agent: Alice Glasco Consulting (Alice Glasco). City Staff: Sherri Sirwaitis, 512-974-3057. 
 
QUESTION/ANSWER:   Council Member Harper-Madison’s Office 
 
I was also wondering if we could get a copy of the US 183 study approved in 1978 that is referenced in the staff 
report for item 109? 
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